Great Swamp Watershed Association

Great Swamp _
Watershed  qeo, Meeting of the Board of Trustees
Association Y ~g Monday, November 29, 2021

)', ”*_“ 6PM Meeting 568 Tempe Wick Rd., Morristown
\M’A‘I'FHKPFPT‘F?IE:AK%E

Agenda

e Approval of Board Minutes from 9/13/2021 Meeting
e Finance Report

e Approve annual audit

e Approve updated financial oversight policy

e Executive Director Report

e Rolling Knolls update

e Irene’s Spring Tree Farm, Mendham

e Employee update

e Development Report

e 2021 Fall Gala results
e Other Business

e Adjourn



GSWA Board of Trustees Meeting
Minutes
09.13.2021

Tony DellaPelle convened a meeting of the Board of Trustees at 9:01 a.m. via ZOOM. Board members
present included Brett Williamson, Sally Glick (Advisory Council), Paul Boudreau, David Naidu, Clark
Wagner, Anthony DellaPelle, Matt Krauser, Chris Obropta, Dot Stillinger, Kevin Sullivan, Reed Auerbach,
Michael Dee, Marilyn Dee, Debra Apruzzese, Teresa Lane, Alan Pfeil {Advisory Council), Eric Inglis, Guy
Piserchia, Kate Barry, Nic Platt, Russell Furnari (Advisory Council), Jay Delaney (Advisory Council), and
Gerry-Jo Cranmer. Staff included Sally Rubin, Sue Levine, and Wade Kirby.

Tony called for the approval of the previous Board Meeting Minutes dated June 18, 2021. Clark Wagner
made a motion to approve the Minutes which was seconded by Gerry-Jo Cranmer. The motion carried
unanimously. Tony then called for the election of three new board members. Sally elaborated on the
previously sent qualifications of Ralph Jones, Stacey Valentine, and Carolyn Sharaway. Tony endorsed
both the gender and geographic diversity of all three candidates. He stated that they would be good
contributors to the team. Sally noted that all three reached out to us instead of us reaching out to
them. Tony then called for the election of Ralph, Stacey and Carolyn to the board. Guy Piserchia
motioned for approval which was seconded by Michael Dee. The motion carried unanimously.
Discussion ensued regarding the election of Thelma Achenbach as a new member of the Advisory
Council. Matt Krauser and Nic Platt strongly endorsed her credentials, as did Gerry-Jo and Tony. Tony
then called for the election of Thelma to the Advisory Council. Eric Inglis motioned to approve which
was seconded by Gerry-Jo. The motion carried unanimously.

Sue Levine then delivered the Finance Report.

Vanguard as of 08/31/2021 total value: $1,803,647. The 4% operational draw is $58,027 which will be
moved from the Endowment Account to the Operational Account. The Finance Committee will meet
again soon to review the Endowment account and determine if a rebalancing is needed.

The Line of credit for $200,000 with Investors expired in July. We received quotes from Peapack
Gladstone Bank and Investors. Peapack Gladstone’s offer was at a higher rate and significant
commitment fees. We discussed that Investors was merged with Citizens and what impacts that may
have. Sally and Sue have been meeting with Investors and were advised that the Investors branches and
foundation would continue to be managed by the existing Investors Team. It was agreed we should
continue to solidify the relationship however with a degree of caution to see what the Citizens impact
will be. We want to establish a new line of credit with Investors for $350,000 at Prime plus 1%. Investors
has agreed to waive the commitment fees. Because we never used the LOC, Investors was unwilling to
do a $500,000 LOC. However, we received a verbal from Investors U/W that we can raise the amount to
$500,000 should we have a specific purpose. Additionally, Sally and Sue discussed drawing small
amounts on the LOC periodically and repaying them the following month just to show use. Vote was
held and the motion approved. Resolution attached. Motion to approve LOC and Resolution - Vote:
First_Kevin Sullivan Second Matt Krauser. Motion was unanimously approved.



We started the Audit of FY 2021. Revenue was over $1 Million. Expenses were just under $1M and the
Endowment Account saw significant growth vs. prior year. Debra asked what were the areas that caused
us to come in over $1M in revenue, it was explained that it was due to a mix of positive increases to
include government support, corporate, and membership, particularly major donors and including
Trustees, which were above prior years plus the plant sale. For a challenging pandemic year, the
community stepped up and supported GSWA.

Year to date results through 07/31/2021 were provided. At this early stage, we are on track with budget.

Tony then asked Sally to give an update on the new employees. Sally stated that Nancy Rago who
replaced Kristina is doing very well on many different fronts including the design of the Gala invitation.
Two new women have replaced Adam Palmer: Ginger Van Ryzin and Angela Oviedo. Angela’s attributes
include a command of Spanish and she lives downstream. Adam worked 40 hours/week and the two
women work 30 hours each with a goal to bring them up to full time. Val Thorpe's daughter Sarah is
currently working 20 hours per week assisting with the Gala Silent Auction items following the
unfortunate dismissal of Diane Lioudis whose computer skills were inadequate. Following the Gala, Sally
plans to conduct interviews for the Office Manager’s permanent replacement.

Debra Apruzzese would like us to become the ‘employer of choice ’ for new, young talent. Chris
Obropta suggested that tracking the employees when they leave would be a good idea. Tony added our
appreciation for Chris conducting the “Exit Interviews” with Kristina, Debbie and Adam. Are we
providing a good enough benefit structure for our employees? It was suggested that a board member
be assigned as a liaison to employees for any potential HR issues. Tony asked if anyone on the board
has Human Resource experience? Board self-evaluations and executive director evaluations need to be
completed and sent to Tony as soon as possible. Our strong GuideStar and Charity Navigator ratings
need to be maintained and depend on this timely submission.

Sally said that the negotiations with PSE&G on the Ferber Property are going well. Meetings and
evaluations regarding the Rolling Knolls Superfund Site are moving ahead, including a comparison with
other local landfill remedies. Our lease agreement renewal with the landlord (the National Park Service)
is almost finalized.

Is Cyber Security Insurance important? Tony said we will discuss it again at the next board meeting. Sue
Levine asked about training and database tracking. Deb offered a contact who could explain fee
structure and training. Tony’s concern is for the security of our assets and private donor information.

Sally then segued to a discussion regarding the Gala. The options at Brooklake Country Club include
both indoor and outdoor. Sally asked what kind of information we should provide for social distancing.
Michael Dee thought that the outdoor option would appeal to more people and notifying people now is
a good idea. He and Marilyn will attend only if it is held outdoors. Tony recommended a pro-active
notification now. David Naidu agreed. Discussion ensued regarding the disclosure of vaccination status
to which Sally was opposed. Gerry-Jo strongly endorsed sending a postcard defining the availability of
an outdoor event, or a hybrid of indoor and outdoor with the silent auction items inside for browsing.
She generously offered to underwrite the cost of the postcard. An outdoor only event will limit us to



225 people. Michael Dee spoke about an event he recently attended where “masks while moving” was
the credo for the day! Everyone agreed this would be a good idea for our Gala as well. Provisions for
the weather need to be made. Brooklake is very accommodating for whatever we want to do. Sally
suggested following receipt of the RSVP’s that we could call people and ask whether they would prefer
inside or outside. She emphasized the Customer Appreciation Wine Celebration Package component of
the advertisement. Will all board members please send in your Gala RSVP’s as soon as possible and
consider contributions of silent auction items and advertising? We look forward to hearing from you!

The next board meeting will be in the evening on Monday, November 29th combined with a holiday
party. Tony adjourned the meeting at 10:21 a.m.

Respectfully Submitted,

Wade Kirby
Director of Development



10:39 AM Great Swamp Watershed Association

11119721 Profit & Loss Budget Performance
Accrual Basis October 2021
Oct 21 Budget % of Budget Jul - Oct 21 YTD Budget % of Budget Annual Budget
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
4% Fund Transfer Draw V] 0 0% 58,027 [l 48,000 121% 48,000
401K Operational Reserve BD 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 20,000
Advocacy Operational Reserve BD 0 0 0% 0 10,000 0% 20,000
Annual Event 71,389 45,500 157% 152,007 Pl 136,250 112% 136,250
Corporate 5,000 20,000 25% 20,000 EW 37,000 54% 96,500
Foundation Support Q 15,000 0% 74,200 Pl 75,500 98% 265,900
Government Grants 0 Q 0% 0 600 0% 600
Handling Income as Agent 0 Q 0% 8 0 100% 0
Individual - Membership 2,392 3,267 3% 17.353 15,427 112% 89,280
Individual Major Donors 2,500 7,000 36% 37,315 43,000 87% 200,000
Individual Trustee Giving 210 150 140% 11,197 900 1,244% 32,000
Music Fest Event 0 0 0% &0 Q 100% 47,810
Other incomes misc 0 33 0% 33 381 9% 38,344
Programs - Education & Qutreach 331 185 179% 1,804 870 207% 17,600
Restricted Individual Donations 10,000 10,000 100% 20,400 10,000 204% 10,000
Total Income 91,822 101,135 91% 392,404 377,928 104% 1,022,284
Gross Profit 91,822 101,135 9% 392,404 377,928 104% 1,022,284
Expense
Administrative Expense 12,516 8,238 152% 47,292 33,754 140% 110,090
Administrative Payroll Total 54,781 53,333 103% 209,827 213,332 98% 671,996
Advocacy / CAGs / Other 3,225 10,000 32% 18,255 20,000 91% 20,000
Annual Event Expenses 25,598 34,775 74% 32,242 37,975 85% 37,975
Development Expense 118 92 130% 445 14,367 3% 54,900
Education and Outreach 0 421 0% 379 2,983 13% 7.700
Hyde and Watson Grant Exp Q0 0 0% 0 7,400 0% 7.400
Mailing 24 308 8% 4,033 1,268 318% 14,840
Membership 84 275 30% 707 6,650 11% 16,800
Merchandise 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 21,000
Music Fest 1,075 0 100% 1,351 0 100% 18,100
Stewardship 191 242 79% 6,935 4,167 166% 16,396
Stewardship Land Acqusition 0 0 0% 813 350 232% 825
Uncategorized Expenses 0 0
Water Quality 0 1,867 0% -1,078 [ 1 8,467 -13% 29,500
Water Testing - Well 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 2,000
Total Expense 97,613 109,550 89% 321,200 350,712 92% 1,029,522
Net Ordinary Income -5,791 -8,416 69% 71,204 27,216 262% -7,238
Other Income/Expense
Other Income
Deferred Inc. -accrual reversal 0 0 0% 29,833 67,500 44% 67,500
Save Noe Pond 0 0 0% 95 0 100% 0
Total Other Income 4] 0 0% 29,928 67,500 44% 67,500
Net Other Income a 0 0% 29,928 67,500 44% 67,500
Net Income -5,791 -8,416 69% 101,132 94,716 107% 60,262

Page 1



10:39 AM Great Swamp Watershed Association

11119121 Profit & Loss Budget Performance

Accrual Basls October 2021

1. We set a conservative budget

2. The gala will be $15K above budget once we include the remaining expenses that will be booked in November. We will make a total of $113K.

3. Bristol Meyer gave $15K v Budget of $10k.
Novartis gave $0 v. Budget of $10k
PSEG gave $5k v Budget of $25k
Bayer - not in the above just pledged $30k v Budget of $10k

4. Meerwarth was budgeted in October in error - funds should arrive in December.
Guildford gave $15k v budget of $3.5K

5. will be $39k.

6. Timing of accrued expenses

Page 2



11/12/21, 8:50 AM Balances and holdings

My accounts

Balances and holdings

[' Current balances | Balances compared to year-end

Balances by date

1; f 11/12/2021 8:50 a.m.

$1,839,244.52 Total assets Defaaso o
Nasdaq 15,704.28 0.00 0.00%
10-year T-note 1.56% 000 -0.26%

Great Swamp Watershed Association—Brokerage Account—37512647* regisiration details

Buy and sell Order status ~ Transaction history Cost basis  Corp actions  More account information

Available balance: $42,100.06

9 Transfer money

Vanguard Federal Money Markel Fund  (Settlernent fund) $42,100.06 Funds available to trade

Funds available to withdraw

Total credits and debits $0.00
Available balance $42,100.06
Price as of
Expense 114112021
Symbeol Name ratie Quantity  4:00 p.m,, ET Change
Mutual funds
VFIAX Vanguard 500 Index Fund Admiral Shares 0.04% 179.693 $420.76  $0.24 0.06%
VFIDX Vanguard Intermediate-Term Investment- 0.10% 7,246.115 $10.05 -3$0.02 -0.20%
Grade Fund Admiral Shares
VTIAX Vanguard Total Inlernational Stock Index 1,067.030 $35.24 $0.20 0.57%
Fund Admiral Shares
ETFs
Qo INVESCO QQQ ETF 0.20% 26.000 $390.580  $1.08 0.28%
ESGU ISHARES ESG AWARE MSCI USA ETF 0.15% 283.455 $106.170 -$006  -0.06%
Total
Great Swamp Watershed Association—Brokerage Account—31806230* regisiration details
Buy and sell Order status ~ Transaction history Cost basis  Corp aclions  More account information

Available balance: $0.02

6 Transfer money
nd) $0.02 Funds available to trade

Vanguard Federal Money Market Fund (Settleme

Funds avallable to withdraw

Tolal credits and debits $0.00
Available balance $0.02
Price as of
Expense fifi1/z021
Symbol Name ratio Quantity  4:00 p.m., ET
Mutual funds
VFIAX Vanguard 500 Index Fund Admiral Shares 0.04% 1,076.777 $429.76 $0.24 0.06%
VMFXX Vanguard Federal Money Market Fund 501.670 $1.00 — -_
VFIDX Vanguard Intermediate-Term Investment- 0.10% 38,372.164 $10.05 -$0.02 -0.20%
Grade Fund Admiral Shares
VIMAX Vanguard Mid-Cap Index Fund Admiral 1,131.368 §318.27 $1.31 0.41%
Shares
VTIAX Vanguard Total Intemational Stock Index 0.11% 7.887.081 $35.24  §020 0.57%

Fund Admiral Shares

https://personal.vanguard.com/us/myaccounts/balancesholdings

Customize this page

Text size: A A

S&P 500 464927 0.00 0.00%
DJIA 3592123 0.00 0.00%

$270,000.28

Account balance detail

$42,100.06
$42,100.06

Current
balance

$77.22486 Buy Sell Exchange

$72,82346 Buy Sell Exchange

$37,602.14 Buy Sell Exchange

$10,155.34 Buy Sell

$30,09442 Buy Sell

$270,000.28
$1,569,244.24
Account balance detail
$0.02
$0.02
Current
balance

$462,325.82 Buy Sell Exchange
$501.67 Buy Sell Exchange

$385,640.25 Buy Sell Exchange

$360,08049 Buy Sell Exchange

$277,940.73 Buy Sell Exchange

112



11/12/21, 8:50 AM Balances and holdings

ETFs
ESGU ISHARES ESG AWARE MSCI USA ETF 0.15% 779.459 $106.170 -$0.06 - 0.06% $82,755.16 Buy Sell
Total $1.,569,244.24

Add another Vanguard account lo your portfolio

Qutside investments

If you have non-Vanguard investments, you can add them here and keep track of them on vanguard.com. Plus, you can use our portfolio analysis tools to analyze all your
investments and get a more complete picture of your entire portfolio.

Add accounts that you update yourself

Total assets $1,839,244 52

Intraday prices are generally provided for stocks, ETFs, and options on & delayed basis during market hours. Prices are delayed al least 20 minutes. If an intraday price is not available, the price
displayed will reflect the previous business day's close. For mutual funds and fixed income holdings, the prices displayed are generally the previous business day's closing price.

Market information is provided by Thomson Reuters. Disclaimer
Additional informaticn about prices for other products and outside investments.
Vanguard funds not held in a brokerage account are held by The Vanguard Group, Inc., and are not protected by SIPC.

*Note on account protection: Securities in your brokerage account are held in custody by Vanguard Brokerage Services®, a division of Vanguard Marketing Corporalion, member FINRA and SIPC.

Accounl protection

CONNECT WITH US®

My Accounts
Personal performance

Account overview Investment prices & returns

Balances & holdings Portfolio Watch

Cost basis Tax center

Dividends & capital gains Retirement contributions, distributions & RMDs
Buy & Sell Messages

Order status Service options checklist

Transaction history Profile & account settings

Statements

Vanguard funds not held in a brokerage account are held by The Vanguard Group, Inc., and are not protected by SIPC. Brokerage assets are held by
Vanguard Brokerage Services, a division of Vanguard Marketing Corporation, member FINRA  and SIPC

© 1995-2021 The Vanguard Group, Inc. All rights reserved. Vanguard Marketing Corporation, Distributor of the Vanguard Funds. Your use of this site
signifies that you accept our terms & conditions of use.

Privacy center | Do Not Sell My Personal Information | Security center | Accessibility | Technical support | Mutual fund prospectuses |
ETF (exchange-traded fund) prospectuses | Special nofice to non-U.S. investors | Careers | Mobile app | Social media | AdChoices

https://personal.vanguard.com/us/myaccounts/balancesholdings 2/2



Great Swamp Watershed Association
Financial Oversight Policy

Financial Oversight Policy
Updated 11/19/21, (prev. Updated 3/31/16; 3/27/15, 10/24/12)
Prepared by - Director of Finance

Purpose: To maintain all aspects of financial management to ensure the effective and efficient running of
the organization. To ensure the financial records are maintained in Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles, GAAP compliance and in compliance with all applicable state and federal statutes. Every effort
will be made to protect against fraud. The size of the organization limits the ability to create significant
separation of responsibilities in a cost effective manner so it is the fiduciary responsibility of the Director
of Finance to protect the organization with policies whenever practical.

1. Financial Management:

Financial Review — Ensure the organization has an annual audit performed by a qualified outside
financial advisor and that the audit meets the requirements of the State of New Jersey and IRS.
This report must be presented to the Board of Trustees upon completion.

Auditor:

Change auditor approximately every 5 years to ensure there is another perspective in the review
process. Prepare all financial records for the audit. Assist auditor as needed for the fiscal year-end
audit.

Budget —
An inclusive annual operating budget is generated prior to the start of the fiscal year and approved

by the Finance Committee, the Executive Committee and the Board of Trustees. This is a critical
process for the effective management of programs and strategic planning. The board is provided
the budget in advance of the meeting so they have time to review it. In addition, the board
meeting is used to discuss the changes and details to ensure that we remain focused on the
mission. The Budget should remain in line with the strategic plan and is targeted to have annual
revenues in line with annual expenses. Any significant deviations must be addressed and
approved. Development Director and Executive Director are key in finalizing the results. All
programs are reviewed and changes are addressed versus prior year so that they will be captured
accurately in the Budget. Education and Stewardship Director and Water Quality Director are
requested to provide their specific changes and needs for programming. The Budget Process
begins immediately after the close & reconciliation of March results.

Financial Trigger Policy — see specific policy — Ensure that the policy is followed, reviewed and
communicated as needed.

Funds for Stewardship and Enforcement — Ensure the funds necessary for the Stewardship and
Enforcement of land and easements of GSWA are segregated and tracked as per the requirements
of Accreditation by the Land Trust Alliance.

Sale or Transfer of Assets — see policy Sale and Transfer of Assets

Accounts Payable and Vendor Selection-

m
6A,B,C,D,E,F,G,H,l Financial Oversight 11/19/21 Page 1




Great Swamp Watershed Association
Financial Oversight Policy

Blank checks are maintained on site. Any check with an account number is stored in a locked
cabinet. Voided checks, should be posted in QuickBooks and then shredded.

Ensure routine review of expenses and recommend cost savings. Review vendors and on larger
vendors, secure quotes when it is functionally and financially practical. New Vendors are reviewed
before adding them to prevent fraud. Invoices are to be approved by either the staff member that
made the purchase or Executive Director. Check authorization is held by both the Executive
Director and the Financial Director. It is preferred that the Executive Director sign all the checks.
When this is not possible, the Financial Director will sign them and advise the Executive Director.
Checks over $10,000 will be approved by both the Director of Finance and the Executive Director
or the Chairman of the Board or Treasurer. Checks over $50,000 will be approved by both the
Director of Finance, Executive Director and Chairman of the Board or Treasurer.

Revenue — Ensure donations received by mail are opened by someone that does not have access
to financial data. Ensure all funds are received and entered into two systems by two different
people. Ensure two separate systems are maintained and cross checked routinely, at a minimum
post gala, December year end and prior to fiscal year end.

On occasion, cash is received at some of our programs. The amount has never been significant
however, should this change, or the amount become significant, there will be two systems of
recording receipt and of depositing the funds. At the annual gala, cash is to be collected by the
Finance Director at the end of the night. The receipt is then cross checked to the detailed receipt
data recorded that evening. All revenue is stamped for deposit only and deposited as quickly as
possible. Any confidential information is stored in a locked cabinet; and will be shredded with
cross hatch once the audit has been completed.

Any funds solicited specifically for the Endowment or donated specifically for the endowment
must be noted and recorded separately and not included in operational results but will be
recorded in the IRS Form 990 — Non Profit Annual Filing.

Payroll:
Maintain all payroll records and post all payroll requirements as received — including Workman'’s

Compensation, Disability, 403B, etc. Ensure all records are maintained confidentially and stored
in a locked cabinet.

Month End - Ensure the reconciliation of financial accounts and Close Month End in a timely
fashion; Report Month End data to Chairman, Executive Director, Director of Development as
requested.

Provide original Bank Statements to Executive Director — to initial -see bank statement policy
Ensure timely reconciliation of credit card receipts in Donor Perfect with funds deposited in the
bank account

Cash Flow (CF)- Ensure the organization has sufficient liquid funds to run operations effectively.
Monitor Cash flow weekly; make suggestions on CF and money market investments as needed.
Make transfers from MM Account to Checking as needed based on Daily Cash flow needs. As a
small operation, ensure that any statement with a transfer is initialed by the Executive Director.

Investments - See Endowment Policy — Vanguard Account Client Services: 800-662-2739
The Board Treasurer will remain the overseer of the account however the only registered agents
are Director of Finance and the Treasurer. At any random time the Executive Director, Treasurer

6A,B,C,D,E,F,G,H,| Financial Oversight 11/19/21 Page 2



Great Swamp Watershed Association
Financial Oversight Policy

and Board may request data on the Investments. Ensure the Finance committee reviews the
Investments and makes recommendations to the Board. Ensure the board is presented the
account status at board meetings. The Endowment is predominantly board restricted however
some funds are specifically endowment funds. Ensure those restricted funds are tracked on an
excel spreadsheet and maintained and reported in the audited reports.

Credit Card Security Management - see specific policy. At the end of each month, ensure any full
credit card numbers received from donors in written form are made illegible and remain in a
locked cabinet until shredded. After close of the fiscal year and after the audit, shred all financial
records with credit card numbers. Shred all original checks for the prior fiscal year with a cross
hatched method.

Record Maintenance

Ensure all records are maintained to meet any audit requirements, financial reviews, IRS
requirements, GAAP requirements and are maintained in a manner that will ensure the privacy of
our donors and business activity. All records that are deemed confidential to an individual donor
are password protected and stored in a manner to ensure the confidentiality of the information
and is purged according to the Records Policy. Any court order would supersede any purge of
confidential data.

Back- up —Ensure routine back up of financial data to G:\Quickbooksbackup) so that there is no
significant loss of data. The data is stored on the desktop and on the G drive. Ensure the data is
also backed up on the cloud. The data must at all times be password protected and the password
is stored under lock with two keys. One with the Executive Director and the other the Financial
Director.

QuickBooks and other pertinent financial records —

Ensure financial data is maintained and backed up in a timely fashion both locally and on the cloud
and at all times is password protected with the password maintained in a locked cabinet accessible
by the Director of Finance and the Executive Directory. Occasionally make an offsite back up to a
flash drive and store in a secure, safe location which could be with the Auditor.

G:\Finance\ - Ensure all necessary financial forms are maintained on the shared directory to
include but not limited to: 990 Forms; Tax Exempt Forms 501(c); NJ Registration of Charities in
good standing; Annual Reports; Financial Reports; Certificate of Incorporation; Tax Reports; NJ
State Sales Tax Exemption ST-5 as well as the Budget and Strategic Plan. This ensures we continue
to keep an open and accessible view of our financial position. Post the 990 and audited report on
the website.

Additional Responsibilities of Director of Finance:

2. Safety — GSWA has a proactive, open door policy on all safety issues. Any issue is immediately
addressed. Safety is addressed at every staff meeting.

3. Human Resources — oversee Human Resource Policies and Issues as they arise. Mediate and
address in a timely fashion any Human Resource based issues. Seek outside counsel if needed.
Ensure that the Employee Handbook is reviewed and updated as needed. Ensure all new
employees review and acknowledge the Handbook. Manage all aspects of compensation as per
the Executive Director and Board directive. Ensure all employee records are maintained in a locked

%
6A,B,C,D,E,F,G,H,l Financial Oversight 11/19/21 Page 3



Great Swamp Watershed Association
Financial Oversight Policy

cabinet. The outsourced payroll company is to provide any key changes in regulations, etc. This
information is also requested from the auditor to ensure we are up to date on payroll and human
resource legislation requirements.

4. Board Meetings — Ensure all pertinent financial data is disclosed to the board in a timely fashion.
Generate minutes from meeting, present financial data at each meeting and as requested by the
Officers of the Board, Executive Committee, Finance Committee and Executive Director. Provide
minutes to Office Manager for distribution and storage.

5. Risk Management and Insurance - see Risk Management Policy
Insurance: Review all coverage and make changes as needed or recommended.
Secure certificates of Insurance when possible from the Deer Hunting Club, Gala Venue and other
offsite events. Periodically solicit competitive quotes.

6. Fraud: Review procedures and modify as needed - see Financial Policies

Approved and Adopted by the Board of Trustees on the ___29th_ day of November 2021.

6A,B,C,D,E,F,G,H,| Financial Oversight 11/19/21 Page 4



Executive Director report for November 29, 2021

Well of course, the first item would be our wonderful gala last month. The weather cooperated
beautifully and we held a fabulous event outdoors under a tent at Brooklake Country Club. We served
214 dinners and everyone in attendance seemed to have a great time. There is a lot to be said for a
smaller more intimate event! We are fortunate to have exceeded our (conservative) budget. see
separate gala summary.

| spent a lot of time working on grants and grant reports with Lynne, including Summit Foundation,
Watershed Institute, Victoria Foundation, Hyde & Watson, Bayer, BMS, Invest in Others, among others...

Sue and | finalized and executed the Letter of Credit with Investors Bank.
I met with various board members and donors.

Wade and | were able to attend the premiere of An American River. It is a fabulous documentary about
Mary Bruno’s kayak trip down the Passaic, including interviews with people along the way. | encourage
everyone to see it when it is more widely distributed and | look forward to hosting a showing, either
virtually or in person.

| attended Stacey Valentine’s Planned Giving seminar. She was a fabulous speaker!!

I spent a lot of time on Rolling Knolls. | held several meetings with the consultants and refuge, wrote
and submitted my quarterly grant report, and spent several hours writing and editing the response to
the letter from the PRP attorney.

| toured our CMA with Hazel to see all the hard work that has been put in there recently. If you haven’t
been there lately, you really need to see the property. Since completion of the NRCS project, the
property looks totally different, retaining so much water even when it hasn’t rained.

| have been investigating a couple of potential property preservations. One is on Britten Road where the
owner contacted me about possible preservation. It is approximately 6 acres and is contiguous to the
Refuge. Itis 70% wetlands. I'm not sure but it might provide better leverage with the EPA regarding
Rolling Knolls if we are a local property owner.

The other property is approximately 170 acres in Mendham known as Irene’s Spring Tree Farm.
Mendham is probably changing the zoning from 10 acres to 5 acres and it would be a fabulous property
to preserve instead of develop.

| worked with Lynne on documentation for Guidestar and Charity Navigator to maintain our platinum
and 5 star ratings respectively. (If you recall, this is what | needed board and executive director
evaluations for.)

Lynne and | had a meeting with Boys and Girls Club of Newark to see if we could possibly do some
educational programming with them. Hazel and Sandra have a meeting scheduled to follow up on the
potential opportunity.

Lynne and | met with Ralph Jones and Kathy Cree, the Executive Director of Newark Life Camp. This was
to see if Kathy could facilitate any introductions for us to work with other schools in Newark. Kathy



introduced us to someone from Newark STEAM (science, technology, engineering, arts, math) and we
are waiting to get a meeting scheduled.

We held a new board member orientation meeting with staff and Ralph Jones, Carolyn Sharaway, and
Stacey Valentine to get to know each other better.

I met with the Mayor of Chatham Township just to catch up on things including Rolling Knolls and filling
her in on our desire to acquire the Ferber property.

| finally finalized the lease with the landlord. It only took a year!
| worked on the year end appeal with Val and you should have received it. We are grateful for all of you!

Depending on when you read this, | hope you have or had a wonderful Thanksgiving!!



HNQN.Om.mo\EmEE:mleEQo_m>w0/mmm>mo>§/xco_«:o.u:wﬂcou/ozumuumz;mgowc_..S/tcwo._u_E/Hmuojmumonad./:_a:._m/mhmmj_/“u
Wd ST€ TZ0Z/6T/1T

9 930N

S 210N

v 910N
€ 910N

¢ 910N

T 210N

UapEQ pUe ‘0009 (Pa12113S3Y-PUL) UOHEPUNOS WIWNG “TZOZA4

‘A108a1e2 Jouo(q Jofep ayl Japun Jou pue aJay Jeadde |jIm ‘@3uelsu) 10y ‘Yid ejeg S, Jouop Jolew y

"92UN0S 40 $S3|pJedal anuanal ejeo |je sapnjau| g

"TCAd Ul PanIadal spuny 350y} JO UOIIA|Y3I @ AUO $I Lodas 3A0QE 3] “TZOZAS OUi PAAOLU SBMm 0009S YID Jolew - uoiepunoy

01Ul panow sem paldLIsay-dio) 00SZS UESIS)|Y "TZAS O} P3LIEI OZAd Ul PIAIBIRI SPUNY IWOS “Juawanbas Sununodoe ad 'y

"sy18 Buiydlew a1el0diod sapnpuy g

"asodind 2y19ads e Joj Jouop ay} Aq pajeudisap suonNQUIIU0I 3le syId paoLIsay 7
‘suoneuop palejas ejed pue uing aaysniy ‘siS solew sapn|ox3 sy Suiuielsns Ajyjuow
pue ‘Buinigd soedyiom ‘SYIS |eLowaw ‘suoljeuop ‘sjeadde ‘s|emaual ‘SUCIIEUOP JIGLUSW MBU 13PN|RUL suonNgILed diysiaquiapy

J8quIaW e palapIsuod 5| polad adeld YIUoW Z + SYIUOW ZT ISe| ay) Ul PIJEUOP SBYy OyM UOAUY ‘T

TIE'L86S €8LTLS %IE 06£°0085 %60T S69°82Z$ 59'80ZS SEVLOTS v2S's8s LSE'ESTS |e30] puein
9v0°06$ 0% io/ala#  [o0$ %0 009°01$ LS 000°01S LS 0$ |e101 Jayy0
SIR'6TS 0s io/Alg# 0% i0/AI10# 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s SIUBID |BNPIAIPU| PRIDLIISEY
£99°0tS 0s io/Alar oS %0 009% 0% 03 0s 0s SIUBID AOD
w9'Ts 0s io/ngy |os i0/AIQ# 0s LS 0% LS 0s Jayip/ewniauQ - dio)
T6°LTS 0s io/Ma# [0S %0 000°01$ 0s 000°0TS 0s 03 Adedonpy
” : o
592°L68S €8L2LS %IE 06£°0085 %BPIT S60°81Z% Lv9'8ves SEV'LES £15'58S LSE'ESTS jelog gqng
€66'THZS S9E'TSS %6E 0T9°6€Z$ %Z0T S89°16S TLL'E6S S8T9LS 9/5°59¢ 065'68$ 3sIpuBYIN /SIUIA] [BJOL
695°CS 0s i0/NIa# 0s io/NIa# 0s 0$ 0$ 0s 0s asipueydRN
TLS9ES 0% %0 0S6°LES %0 05z$ 0s 0s 0s 03 ales jue|d
vrSTLS SI81S %0 018°LYS io/nias 0s 0s 0s 0s 06v'1ZS [BAIIS34 2SN
TL0°22TS 8TV'61S %89 0SZ'9ETS %Z0T 0SL'06% TPETES 0SL'SLS T00'S9% T0L'€9% eleg
8€7'8S 4443 %8 009°LTS %602 589$ 0EY'TS SEVS 9£5S 86€S 5juang / sweidosd
; SIPUBYIIBIAfSIUDAT
SLE'STES 009°2$ %Zb 00S'6ETS %6ZT 005°LLS 009'66$ 00028 000°0TS £69°6TS suonnIsu| je3oL
000'€2TS 0s %56 000°€EZTS %IST 000'stS 000895 03 0s 0s Pa13u3salun suolepunoy
SLE'60TS 0s %BES 000°02% %£0T 005'STS 009°9TS 05 000°0TS 000'STS pauIsay suoliepunoy
00T'ZES 009$ %8E 005'6£$ %88 000°£1S 000°STS 0002s 0s L69°2TS paiuIsalun suonelodio)
0002S 0s %0 0s %0 0s 0% 0s 0s 0s 159y diyspiemais suoiesodio)
005°6vS 000ZS %0 000°LSS jo/nig# 0$ 0s 0s 0s 000Zs paialsay suonelsodio)
suolniisuj
L6T'6EES 818‘81S %LT 08Z‘1ZES %ETT 016'80S 9£2'55% 0SZ'6TS Tr6°6S 0L0'8€$ s{enplalpu] ejoy
LIE'YBS 899°¢cS %91 082'68% %8IT 09T°21S YOEPTS 00T'pS £87'ES 0St'TTS diysiaquiaiy
889'812% 000°STS %LT 000°00ZS %L6 000°9¢$ 0€8'PES 000'STS STT'9% 000925 SYID Jolep

005's$ 0$ io/nay | 0s io/na# 0s 0s 0s 0% 0s usiedwe) jende) -
T6L0ES 0S1S %6T 000°ZES %618 0545 ZP1'9s 0STS ss 079% Sa21sn.)
s|enpiaIpu|

aunf- da sjpo aun Ay - AIn dag - A| (dag
Uuntremy. | souamioy | | ‘orseasbout iz anrawon| | U0neinsooo | CO%E A | a5 M) | | ypog o | ssasiemoy | | -amrau
v i Jo ssaiboig 10U |enpy
T20Z 0f 12qwaidas jo se

Arewwng yuawdojanag Ajyuopy
uoleI0SSY paysialep duwemg jealn



aNONuﬁm.oa...rmEE:mlucwEno_m>mn_/mmm>mo>;x{_oo::o.u:Bcouzwcumuumz_/mBOﬁ:_B/tcmcb_E

Wd vZ:€ 1Z0Z/6T/T1

9 910N

S 910N

¥ 910N
£ 910N

¢ 210N

T 210N

u3p3Q0 PUE ‘00095 (PRILISIY-PUS) UOLIEPUNOS HWWINS “TZ0ZA4

\jedoT\eleqddy\uignis\siasn\:o

‘A10381e2 JouoQ Jofey ayi Japun Jou pue aiay seadde im ‘sauelsul 104 ‘YIS ejeg s, 10uop Jofew v “32IN0S 0 $s3|pJedas anusAal BlED || SapNnfu| '

“TZA4 U1 PIABIDL SpUNy 3S0Y] JO UONIBYJaI & AJUO SI 110daI BA0QE 3y "TZOZA4 OIUI PIAOW SEM 00095 Ui Jolew - uopepunoy
OJul panoul sem pa1aliisay-diod 005z$ UeIafly ‘TZA4 O) PaLLIEd OZA4 Ul PIAIBIDI SPUNy BWOS "uawa4inbas Sununoe Jad

"SYI8 Buiyolew ajelodiod sapnpu; ‘g

‘asodund 2y123ds e 10} J0UOP 3y} AQ Pa1RUSISIP SUOIINGLIUDI le SYIF paldISaY 7

‘Suoijeuop palefal ejed pue 3uing 931sna) ‘s solew sapnjaxa SY18 Jululesns Ajyjuow

pue ‘uing asedyiom ‘SIS |eowaw ‘suoneuop ‘sjeadde ‘s|emauaJ ‘SUOIJEUOP J3QUWAW MaU apn|ul sSUoINGLIIU0D diysiaquay

43qQUIBLW e PaU3PISU0I S| poliad 32eld YIUGW 7 + SYIUOW ZT 1S8| 3yl Ul PjRUCP SBY OyM auoAuy ‘T

TIE'L86S 965'STTS %It 06£°0085 %9L L6T'6ZES ZPI'TEES Z0T'T0TS 181288 TE0'VOES |eyo] pueis
970065 0$ io/Alag oS %6 009°0Z% £00°01S 000°0T$ 000°0T$ 0$ (L LTRELT o]
SI8'6TS 0s io/nla  |0s %00T 000°0TS 000°0TS 000°01S 000'01% 0s SIUBLD |BNPIAIPU| PRIDIIISTY
£99°0bS 0s io/Alax  |0s %0 009$ 0s 0s 0s 0s SJUBID AOD
w9'Ts 0% io/na# [0S i0/n1a# 0% L5 0s 0s 0$ Jayip/ewniau - dio)
T26'LTS 0$ io/AIa% [0S %0 000°0TS 0s 0s 0s 0s Aoesonpy
B3y0
S9Z°L68S 965'STTS %0t 06£°008% %01 L69°80E$ SET'TZES 01165 L8Y'TULS TE0'0ES |eloL gqng
£66'TVZS 18t'LSS %59 019'6€2$ %PTT 0L8°9ETS £06°SSTS S89°SHS ZET'29% IvT'ISTS 3s|pueyIan /sjusAg [eo)
695°7$ 0s io/nae | os io/na# 0s 0s 0s 0% 0$ asipueydiay
TLS9ES 0% %0 0S6°LES %0 (11743 0$ 0s 0s 0% 3|es jueld
YrSTLS 0s %0 0T8PS io/na# 0% 0s 0s 0s rL'625 |BAIIS34 DISNIA
TL0'T2TS YSELSS %ETT 0ST'9ETS %YTT 0SL'SETS OTT'vSTS 005's¥S 0LL'T9S 088'0ZTS ejen
8ET'8S L2T$ %01 009°21S %902 0£8% €6L'TS S8TS 79€% STSS S1U3A3 / sweidoud
; g i 3 asIpueydIaly /siuang
SL6'STES | 9LL°tv$ %bb 00S'6€2S %E6 00SZTTS 009'r0TS 000°SES 000's$ PLY'BOTS suonnsuj [e3oL
000'€2TS 000'5Z$ %85G 000'€2TS %IST 000°s¥S 000895 0s 0s 000255 palauIsalun suolepunoy
SLE'BOTS 005°ZTS %ES 000'0Zs %S 0050€$ 009°9T$ 000°STS 0% 005°'£ES pajouisay suonepuno
00T'zes 9LT'0TS %8E 00S'6€$ %95 000228 000°STS 000°01$ 0s VLE'YTS paiusalun suolielodio)
000°z$ 0% %0 0% %0 0s 0% 0s 03 0s "159y diyspiemals suonesodio)
005'6¥S 0s %6 000£5S %05 000°01S 000'sS 000°0TS 000°sS 0s Pa101say suonesodio)
. suonnjnisul
LE6T'6EES 6EE0TS %6T 082°TZES %Z0T LTE'6SS ZE9°09% LIYOTS SGE‘SS TIv'8ts sienpialpu| jejoL
LTE'PRS 05625 %6T 087'685 %60T L2Y'STS TrL9TS £92'ES LEV'TS TSEPIS diyssaquiaiy
889'8T¢S 86T°LS %6T 000°00ZS %L8 000°EPS QEELES 000£S 00sTs 86T'EES SY19 Jolepy
005'5$ 0s io/Aa# | 0S jo/Na# 0% 0$ 0s 0s 0$ ugiedwe) |ende) -
Z6L°0€S 161S %IZ 000°ZES %6EL 006% 195'9$ 0S1S 6175 798% saalsn.y
20 (wo
1Z,9unf-0g, | 0Z0Z PO |09 ZZOZA|  TT,dunf (120- Ainf) | (20 - Ajnp)
| ybno.ay; sjpog 330 |20 130 [enY =Ainr) a1a
Ainflemay | Joug [emay o1 ssasbold |1z, Ainf sjeon Téiaiboiy QLASIEOD | QLA ([ENY b splas
T2Z0Z 1€ 420300 jo se

Atewwns juawdojanag Ajyauopy

uoneossy paysiaiep duwems jealn



‘uejd 2182315 Mau J1a13 S11) Suiuwesgoud ano yi

ELIOIIA WOl sIURIS 10J 3|qiF12 3q ||13S ABW YMSD HJEMSN 01 UOIII3UUOD 21)133ds SIY3 3ARY 10U Op OYM Suoieziuegio Aue 3na Buiseyd aq |jim Inq ‘s1eak € IxBU BY) J10) “YANSD a¥I] ‘searuesd
1U311n2 03 Bulpuny P3IILIWIOD BABY ABYL *PJEMIO) BUIAOW AJUNWIWIOD YJEMBN 33 JO SPI3U 3y} UO A[DAISN|IX3 SNJOY ||IM PUB ‘UoN28.1p J1F31e1s 1iay) BuISUBYD S1 UONEPUNOS BLIOIJIA 3L

"AjBAI1IR43 BI10W WY} YIM
198UU02 03 ysiueds 0} 5|ELRIEW |BUONEINDS BJBISUBJ] PUE ‘S3IUNWWOD 35343} Ul uoieindod JUSpNIs aY) JO 3IOW Y3IM 3I0M O} S|GE 31 M ‘SPUN) [2UOIIPPE 3534 YUM "PIUSISIEM JNO
Ul S9NIUNWWIOD UBGIN PaAJBsiapun 3y3 ul Suiwwessold yidsp-ul 30w op 0} paau ay 1031494 qqINbs SISA [03s1g pue JaAeg WOy BUIAI9D8. 318 9M SIUNOWE JUBIT BY] Ul BSE3IDUI By L

‘SI1ON
00°000°52T $ TVi0L
u0NeI03sal YIAD - duipuad ‘JaqwiaaoN ul Juas [esodold| 00'000'S S uesn
JoopIno M3a N1
3u3s3] Sv4d - Bulpuad 48903120 U1 Juas |esodold| 00°0000T S uo|lepuno4 suaneay
swesso.d Ayjenp Jaiep - Sulpuad Jaguanon ul luas [esododd| 00°000°S S UOI}EPUNOS SNINIXOY
SO9- duipuad “JaquianoN Ut Juas esodoid| 00005 T S uojlepuno4
uasAnydunaiy
uoieanp3 - Buipuad '12qo3aQ Ul 1uss [esodosd| 00°000°07  $ po0Y 10§ SIUEID
uoiesnp3 - Buipuad ‘Jaquwaidas ul Juas |esodold| 00°000°SZ 3 uollepunod JajAL
Jwwing ui saiddns uspiedules pue dej 543 1591 - sulpuad Jaqua3das Ul 1uss (esodold| 00'000°0T g UoIIEpUNO4 JILIUING
S09 - Bulpuad “Jaquiaidas | Juas |esodoid| 00°000°ST S uonepunod asnoyyaels
ystueds ojul jeliaiew jeuoiieanpa Bulejsuel] - Suipuad 18qoidQ Ul juds [esodold| 000058 2IN3ISU| PAYSIIEM
uonednp3 - uipuad 'Jaquwia1das ul Juas (esodold| 00°000°ST $ uoEPUNDS YHEMIIBN
1senbay $$ BY0
00°526'6vS 00'SZ8‘Z9TS |00°006°2TTS 1101
15n3ny Ui papieme - uoddns Bunesadp |eiauas|o00s 00°000'sz $ | 00°000°5C 5 uollepunod oI
Ainr ul papseme - woddns Sunesadp jessua9|00°005TTS 00°000'ST S | 00°005E S uojepunog paoging
Anr ul papieme - oddns Sunessdp jesauss{00°000'TS 00'000°8 S | 00°000°L S uoiepuno4 Jazew
Ainf ui papseme - yoddng BunesadQ |esausn[oo'0s 000000z $ | 00'000'0Z  § uolepuno4 Janeg
Hoddng uojlepuno4 padnisasun
439010 Ul uoieIyou pJeme - Juawdinba ajowal pue adiyo - sndny Ul palddy| 00°005'S S | 00'000'ET S | 00'00F'L S uosiem @ apAH
Ainr ui papleme ‘uosialed ul wesdoud uiseg yaied-y-1dopy 00'S29S 00'529 S ainjng Asiafr man
"swesdoud Aljenb 33em soy sxedey aquisides ul papiemy|00'000°0TS 00000°0T S |0 uollepunog
13sse|D sewoy)
Ainf ur papieme - diyspiemais v [00°002'TS 000029 S | 00'000°S S uoijepunog uljjeH euepw
Pa31oL3say uoIepunoy
Anr ut papaeme - Loddns Furiesado [e13uan[00°000°STS [ 00°000°ST S [00°0S odied sjiam| |
paidysauun ajelodio)
ddJ94d Je Wwesoid punosedelm pue s|00YIS Ul UOIIEINPT "JSQUISACN Ul UOIED|IIOU PIEMY 000005 00°000°ST S |00°000°0TS qqnbs-1aAly |03s1g
dd294 1e weisosd punosedelm PUE S[OOYDS Ul UOIEINDT “JBGLUSACN Ul UOIEDIHIOU piemy 00°000'0ZS 00°'000°0€ $ |00°000°0TS pun4 iakeg
"AduedaJasip ay1 Joy uoneue|dxa ue se ’,138pnq[00°000°0Z5- 00°000's s |000006T $ 953sd
paliwi| e yum suonedndde yo saquinu Juipunolse,, ue 108 Aay3 18y} pjol sep 1das Ul papiemy
S3ILON JONVIHVA IVYNLDY 135ang padlIsay ajelodio)
1207 1aquianop deday juein



Wade's Development Board Report
11.19.2021

Staffed a GSWA display at the Madison Environmental Commission’s Fair of Non-profits

Attended a networking event with major donors at the Beneduce Vineyards in Pittstown
Participated in a virtual networking group over multiple weeks.

Viewed “The Art of Thriving “Investors Bank Webinar

Concluded solicitation of Gala sponsorships, advertisers and silent auction donations - September
Assisted with transport of Gala silent auction items to Brooklake Country Club on 10.7.2021

Aided visual/sound engineer with Gala set-up on day of

Attended Gala and assisted with break down and transport of remaining items back to the office
Attended staff debrief following Gala

Followed-up with board members’ table guest attendees to solicit ongoing interest in GSWA
Fielded calls with Stacey Valentine regarding her presentation on Planned Giving at the Kemmerer
Library on 10.20.2021

Prepared GSWA promotional materials for distribution at event

Attended presentation

Followed-up with all attendees

Viewed Environmental Fundraisers’ Gathering presentations on tax updates and storytelling power.
Attended staff introduction to new board members

Lunch with Conor Evans - prospective new Advisory Council and/or board member

Lunch with Andrew Delaney (Advisory Council) and Sally re. his continued support and assistance
with recruitment of younger members through a planned event

Viewed Pentera Planned Giving Marketing Webinar

Made gift acknowledgment phone calls and sent letters to major donors for all gifts received.



Communications Board Report — Val Thorpe

November 2021

Events

GSWA 40™ Anniversary Gala and Silent Auction
Thursday, October 7, Brooklake Country Club, Florham Park, NJ

Financials
Thru 10/31/21
Income | Gross $154,110
Budget $135,750
$18,360
Expense | Actual $32,300
Budget $38,000
($5,700)
Net $121,810*

*We exceeded our financial goal and underspent our expenses. Year-over-year analysis to follow.

Some specifics
Underwriting: $47,000

Silent Auction: $33,036
Advertising: $9750
Donations (at the Gala): $5,074

With Debbie Rice’s retirement and new staff members in place, we had our hands full planning and
executing our 40th Anniversary Gala and Silent Auction, our largest fundraiser of the year. On August 9,
just shy of two months to the Gala, we hired Sarah Thorpe on a temporary basis to manage the silent
auction portion of the event. A week prior to the event, we opened the auction online with over 140
items up for bid. Once again, we offered wine packages to advertisers (2 bottles of wine to be delivered
to friends, clients, and/or customers of those purchasing the package) which provided an excellent
opportunity to cultivate potential GSWA supporters. 37 wine packages were delivered by GSWA staffers
the week leading up to the Gala.

On October 7, we celebrated in style, outdoors under a starry sky in an open-air tent at the Brooklake
Country Club, Florham Park, NJ. The weather was perfect. Although this year’s Gala was smaller in size
than previous years, it was big on smiles. There was a charge in the air as old friends reconnected once
again in the name of clean water and land. The intimate gathering was attended by 214 attendees with a
timely presentation on climate change by guest speaker, David Robinson, NJ State Climatologist and



Rutgers professor. Congresswoman Mikie Sherrill, 11th Congressional District of New Jersey, joined us to
honor GSWA for "40 years of service to the community and their commitment to protecting and
preserving the health of the Passaic River." The certificate is in Sally’s office for anyone interested in
seeing it in person. A bonus to the evening - Debbie Rice and Kristina Necovska attended to help
celebrate our 40" anniversary! New Jersey Hills Media ran pictures and a writeup of the event in several
of their local papers.

None of this would have been possible without our:

e Gala underwriters: New Jersey American Water, Atlantic Health System, Dixon Energy, Senlac
Ridge Partners, Adrienne & Reed Auerbach, Avelino Law, BASF, Agi & Matt Krauser, PSEG,
Schenk, Price, Smith & King, Valley Bank

e Unbelievably dedicated and hard-working staff

e Board and Advisory Council members who helped obtain silent auction items, promote the
event, and hep with numerous other necessary tasks

e Amazing volunteers leading up to and during the event

e Donors and supporters

The Chathams/Madison Community Yard Sales

GSWA was once again the recipient of proceeds obtained via households registering to participate in the
3-townwide (the Chathams and Madison) yard sale in September. The event yielded us $450. This same
community event took place in April where we received $1,100. We are grateful for the combined
$1,550 donation we received from these towns in 2021 and are equally appreciative for all the items
that found new homes and did not end up in a landfill. Plans are already in the works for two similar
events in 2022.

2021 Programs/Events at-a-glance

While still in the midst of the pandemic, we brainstormed creative ways to keep the public engaged. The
result was 56 public events in 2021 including hikes, evening briefings, zoom webinars, workshops, and
more. These events often prompt new GSWA memberships and underscore our mission.

e Hikes: We led 14 hikes at the CMA, Jockey Hollow, Garret Mountain, and other locations on
varying days of the week including morning, afternoon, and night hikes. Our hikes continue to be
very popular with nearly all of them at maximum capacity.

e Cook with GSWA: We offered 4 virtual cooking shows on Zoom featuring recipes from our GSWA
Quarantine Cookbook (a fundraiser created during the height of the pandemic — a collection of
recipes from staff, board members, and other contributors including Mike Sherrill). Co-hosted by
Hazel England and Sandra LaVigne, these ladies put on an entertaining and informative show
weaving in information about our organization, the environment, and upcoming GSWA events.
Our last program focuses on the benefits of foraging for edible invasive, turning the garlic
mustard into a delicious garlic mustard pesto.

e Water Quality: Stream Assessment Training, 2020 Water Quality Report Card, PFAS readout

e Rain/Native Gardens: our wildly successful, financially lucrative, first-ever Native Plant Sale,
Gardening for Pollinators, and Intro to Rain Gardens.

e Back to Nature workshops — We partnered with Back to Nature for 2 well-attended, virtual
workshops .



e CMA Stewardship Days: Fridays were the day to get outside during the summer and help
steward the land. Many volunteers took us up on this request and helped get boardwalks built,
mulch trails, and more.

e We even pulled off a virtual Pub Quiz with prizes and a virtual chocolate tasting friendraiser. —
Both were well attended and prompted several family memberships.

Upcoming events:

e 12/4 Geocaching — We are partnering with John Neale for a Geocaching event at our CMA.
Geocaching is a popular and growing sport. This could introduce a whole new group of people to
our organization.

e 12/8 Friendraiser — Wine and Cheese? Yes, please! This wine and cheese tasting event is our first
in-person friendraiser in 18 months. 6-8 Tasting stations will be spread out throughout the first
floor of the office. As always, we will hold an environmental-themed a pub quiz with prizes.

#GivingTuesday/Year-end Appeal

This year’s theme is “gratitude.” Our year-end appeal was mailed on November 17 with a $10K match
challenge thanks to a generous donor. The appeal runs concurrently with #GivingTuesday, which takes
place annually the Tuesday after Thanksgiving. It's a global generosity movement that follows Black
Friday and Cyber Monday encouraging people to give of their time, donate to their favorite charity, or
use their voice to make a change, which is communicated via social media.

eNews

in 2021, we send 62 eNews communications through our Constant Contact program with an open rate
of 29%. In total, there were 140,000 sends. An overwhelming majority of our recipients read our emails
on their desktop 65%, vs. mobile at 35%.



Board Meeting Report: Membership and Social Media
Nancy Rago, November 29, 2021

As Membership Manager, my focused has been on mastering the reporting function on the CRM software,
Donor Perfect, as well as the many tasks needed for our Gala Annual Event. | am more confident in my report
building and using the code/filter functions to yield better reporting for the development and finance teams.
The Gala tasks included imputing 119 Auction Item Donations, 95 Auction Item Purchases, 33 Gala Ad
Programs/Underwriters, and 78 Gala Donations. | tracked and reported to the Gala Event teams the 63 Ticket
Purchases in the various seating types. | generated 325 letters thanking the constituents for their support to
GSWA's largest fundraiser. With the above behind me, I have turned my focus to the Year-end Appeal; my first
Friend Raiser; the second annual Plant Sales slated for April 1-22, 2022; and monitoring membership numbers
quarter-over-quarter. As Social Media Manager, | am implementing a content calendar and working on new
strategies to entertain, inform and educate the channels in various ways. One example is with the
Facebook/Instagram channel, we are using Stories more in conjunction with posts.

Membership Q1 FY2022
e Gifts from 07/01/2021 to 09/30/2021:
- Donor Count: 419 Constituents (Q1 FY2021 314 Constituents)
- Gift Frequency Analysis: 370 gave 1 Gift, 35 gave 2 Gifts, 8 gave 3 Gifts, 4 gave 4 Gifts,
1 gave 5 Gifts, 0 gave 6 Gifts, 1 gave 7 Gifts (Q1 FY2021 250 gave 1 Gift, 36 gave 2 Gifts,
13 gave 3 Gifts, 2 gave 4 Gifts, 0 gave 5 Gifts, 1 gave 6 Gifts)

e General Membership - Renew: 54, New: 15 (Q1 FY2021 Renew: 119, New: 21)

e Partnership with like-minded organizations, like the Save the Drew Forest and the NJ AmeriCorps
Watershed Ambassador, continues to help with our events’ depth and reach. The Member-only hike at
Drew Forest reached original capacity count so we worked with the team to add a leader to extend the
attendee count. The Fairfield Fall Cleanup Day on Nov 19 was promoted by both GSWA and the
AmeriCorps team and yielded 12 volunteers to help with the cleanup.

e Year-end Appeal 2021 and Giving Tuesday:

- Year-end Letters were be mailed to nearly 1,745 addresses with a Gratitude Challenge theme on
11/18/21. A Gift Match, up to $10,000, doubles donations through the end of the year.

- Giving Tuesday will be an Email and Social Media campaign. Three emails, four social media posts,
and a Giving Tuesday webpage are planned.

e Q2 Member Mailings will consist of monthly mailed reminders of upcoming renewals and a lapsed
member mailing to re-engage lost members between 09/30/2020 to 09/30/2021.

Social Media as of 11/18/21:

e Audience Analytics — Audience growth and Demographics (08/31/2021 to 11/18/2021):

- Facebook.com/GreatSwamp - 17 new Page Likes and 42 new Followers (3,209 people like and
3,514 people follow this Page)

- Instagram.com/greatswampnj - 48 new Followers (2,332 Followers)
- Twitter.com/greatswampnj - 19 new Followers. (2,303 Followers)
- Linkedin.com/company/great-swamp-watershed-association — 20 new Followers. 138 Followers.
- Gender: Women 67%, Men 33%.
- Top Five Cities: Chatham, Morristown, Madison, Basking Ridge, New York, NY.

e Content Analytics — Content that yielded the best reach, like and replies:
- Intro to Rain Gardens Post
- Thank you @RepSherrill, for the 40th Anniversary acknowledgment and coming out to the Gala.
- Chainsaw Safety Training




e Looking Ahead to Social Media Post Content:

- NOVEMBER
o Post-Thanksgiving Hike & Cleanup - Oct 28
o Giving Tuesday Infographic/Fundraiser Posts - Nov 23, 27, and 30

- DECEMBER
o Geocaching at the CMA - Dec 4
o Friend Raiser: Tentative Dec 8 - Wine & Cheese Tasting at GSWA Headquarters
o Winter Solstice Infographic - Dec 21
o Year-End Charitable Donation Reminder - Dec 27

- JANUARY

o Virtual "Source to Sea" 80-mile Run. SAVE THE DATE! Post - Jan 4
o National Bird Day - Jan 5
- FEBRUARY
o World Wetlands Day - Feb 2
o International Day of Women and Girls in Science - Feb 11
o National Skip the Straw Day - Feb 25

Website Analytics as of 11/18/21
e Google Analytics Audience Overview — 08/31/2021 to 11/18/2021:
- Users who have initiated at least one session during the date range - 12,033
- Geo Location, United States Users - 10,870. Top Five Regions: NJ, NY, CA, FL, VA.
- New vs Returning - 11,875 vs 1,222
- Mobile Overview - mobile 7,384, desktop 4,262, tablet 479
- Top Channels Acquisition Overview:

@]

o}

Organic Search 6,132 - Source/Medium in order of User Acquisition: Google, Bing, Baidu,
Yahoo, DuckDuckGo.

Direct 4,583 — Landing Page in order of User Acquisition: Is It a Dog, a Wolf, or a
Coyote?, Home Page, 40th Anniversary Gala & Silent Auction, Chathams-Madison Town-
wide Yard Sale, Seeking Corporate/Community Groups for Stewardship, Upcoming

Events, Rolling Knolls Landfill — What Will Become of It?, Evening Briefing: Put Your

Garden to Bed, Have You Ever Talked To A Black Bear?, DONATE.

Social 1,028 — Social Network in order of User Acquisition: Facebook, Twitter, LinkedIn,
Instagram, Pinterest, WordPress, Instagram Stories, YouTube.

Referral 483 — Sources: patch.com, baidu.com, chathambourough.org,
classroom.google.com, hardingnj.org, linktree.ee, thewatershed.org, eco-usa.net.
theraptortrust.org, rosenet.org.

e Google Analytics Behaviors Overview — 08/31/2021 to 11/18/2021:
- TOP TEN MOST POPULAR PAGES:

0O 0O 00O

O 0 0 0 O

1. Is It a Dog, a Wolf, or a Coyote? - Pageviews 3,063

2. Home Page - Pageviews 2,130

3. Chathams-Madison Town-wide Yard Sale - Pageviews 1,671

4. 40th Anniversary Outdoor/Indoor Gala & Silent Auction - Pageviews 997

5. It’s Too Wet Here — Can | Fill in Wetlands? A Guide to What You Can and Can’t Do in a

Wetland Area - Pageviews 925

6. Upcoming Events - Pageviews 828

7. Did You Know? About Red-tailed Hawks - Pageviews 736
8. New Jersey’s Unique Geology - Pageviews 499

9. CART - Pageviews 433

10. STAFF - Pageviews 310




Education and Outreach Report Hazel England  November 19, 2021

- T

Overview:

We have been incredibly busy over the last
couple of months with public programming,
school programming, finalizing grant
deliverables and educational training and
| development work. We have had sell out
. attendances at our fall full moon and Garrett
e o m:.., -_.-G.,«i; b ; M9unt?in r'1ikes, along with robust, if
Views of Paterson and our Participants on the Garrett Mountain " p”manly virtual attendance at our
Hike % Watershed Friendly Living workshops
including talks on the CMA restoration, rain
garden and green infrastructure, and putting your garden to bed
workshops. Although our evening briefings were offered as hybrid
for in person or virtual attendance, our attendees almost 100%
opted for virtual attendance. We think that this may be the new
normal for these types of programming. It is easier to attend talks
virtually for many, and without the travel or potential risks. The
downside is that it is a different type of engagement, and far less
interactive than in person programming. We will continue to
evaluate how we deliver our programming as we plan for winter
spring programming shortly.

Our two new staff have been busy
learning and getting up to speed on
the programming we teach. We all have attended CPR and
d first aid training, the fall outdoor Environmental education
conference and youth protection training. We continue to
~ expose them to our variety of programming to ensure they
& understand both what to
) teach and how to teach it.
Angie is getting up to
speed on the content and
‘ - translating our lesson plans
into Spanish and preparing
~all for our educational videos
- £ s to be dubbed into Spanish.
[exing 3 gsdest e |\ Both Angie and Ginger
) have been helping us
create new teaching materials, some structure for social
media posts moving forward and other documents we have
needed for teaching effectively in person and hybrid. We are also updating our program
reporting forms so that we can effectively track our numbers to help in managing grant
obligations.
We have taught over 430 students outside over the last 7 weeks- from Kindergarten to College
students, on diverse water quality topics and ecological programming. It is great to be back in
person with students, but we see that many students have forgotten important science

Foote’s pond was the location for our first outdoor
programming of the school year




concepts and critical thinking skills over the change in instruction during the pandemic. We
have several schools interested in our programming over the coming weeks and should finish
December w1th more in class or playground mstructlon

= &= We participated each Wednesday for three
weeks with 50 4-5' grade students from Luis
Marin Munoz school in Newark, working
with the staff from Trust for public land to

~ plan lessons as they help students
understand their playground environment,
how water moves around it, and around
their community and the scope of
possibilities for a playground re-design. We
are happy to partner with TPL and did so pre
COVID on a similar project for Lincoln school
in Newark. We will be teaching 110 Newark
students from St Michael’s the week after
thanksgiving, and although entry protocols are a little cumbersome (upload of a negative PCR
test and vaccine for entry,) it is worth it to get into these urban, underserved schools again.

Altogether we have conducted 21 existing and 7 new educational
programs this fall alone, and taught to several college programs,
including William Patterson, Drew, and Kean universities on
Freshwater ecology, Environmental studies and on the ecological
: restoration at the CMA. Students from Kean were seniors attending
their first in person field trip in 18 months, and the wet weather
. meant there was still plenty of salamanders and fall insects for them
to see and interact with.
We have also used much of our new tech equipment in creative ways,
such as leading a virtual ' ? B P :
field trip for the LMM students as we explored the
many features of the TPL installed community areas
of the Sussex Ave School playground ahead of them
visiting their own playground. Our carefully crafted
educational videos have also begun to be viewed as
supplemental materials as part of programming,
and the feedback on them has been excellent. We
will continue to work on incorporating them into
our teaching. We can tell that we are back to in
person teaching as we all have experienced the : - . =1
hoarseness that results from teaching all day- somethlng we haven t experlence for 18 monthsI

New Funding from Bayer Foundation will enable us to work extensively with the Boys and Girls
Club network, and we will pilot our program in Paterson into December, adding Passaic in the
spring. We are scheduled to meet with the Boys and Girls club team after thanksgiving to flesh
out the schedule and approach for this totally new multi week programming we will conduct
with them.



Rain garden work

The rain garden plant choice cards ready for our class teaching have been
finalized and are shared to be printed. These cards allow students to choose
rain garden plants that also help other beneficial species around the school.
.~ We continue to plan for access to PS30 before the end of the year. We

; presented the second Summit area rain garden workshop, attended by 25
participants. As follow up to this we will be making site visits to advise
homeowners on green infrastructure installation and design. We also have
funding to install a rain garden in a Summit area school and are targeting
N Franklin school to be the recipient. Although the rain garden would be

5 8 . installed in the spring, we would begin work with the students over the
winter months We have helped advise Summit on the planning and ecological aspects of the design
for their NJ American Water funded micro forest, which will be installed behind the community

Plant sale planning

We have moved forward with planning for the 2022 sale. A larger
palette of plants has been chosen and new kits including shade, wet
condition and full sun kits will expand our offerings. Up from 19
species we will sell 28 plant plugs including grasses and ferns, and a
broader array of perennials. We have determined new ways to
create the kits by breaking up the large flats, which should entail a
little less preparation work as we create them. We already have
three new partners interested in participating and joining the 17
partners from 2021, and after meeting, Morris County Master
Gardeners will also offer help and publicity. Preliminary

plant orders have been placed to safeguard the plants we need, and
the students at Pingry created 5000 labelled popsicle sticks as part of
a community service day. We created postcards as save the date
cards and gave out more than 500 of these at the Morristown a7 -
Festival on the Green (thanks to Susan and John Landau) and as place cards at the October GSWA
gala. We will continue to pre advertise with our partners, and this week all 430 purchasers of plant
materials from this spring received a newsletter with plant sale information along with advice and
resources for over wintering their new pollinator gardens




Overview

It may seem like Groundhog Day to say we are continuing to
deal with wetter conditions at the CMA, but it is our ongoing
reality! To put it in perspective, in September and October
alone- not including the November rainfall we have incurred,
15.4” rain fell in Morris County, as against a 30-year average of
¥ s 8”. Given our site holds onto rainfall
longer since our restoration, and we
are dealing with massive rainfall
amounts, the ongoing work of
maintaining trail access, dealing with flood conditions, stabilizing, and strapping down
boardwalks to stop them floating away and continuing to build more to access all trails
will continue to occupy much of our time and give us headaches!

| Thankfully the COVID induced lumber price spike is diminishing a little, but lumber
costs are still proving a major expense at just less than double their pre COVID rates.
With our corporate and community field season wrapping up, we managed to make
the best of our limited help, with more than 780 volunteer hours spent in September
and October alone carrying out lumber, chipping trails, and with one final group
addressing some of the overwhelming invasive removal stewardship that we have had to put on hold since
COVID. We had two days of volunteering from Teva Pharma, along with $2500
in underwriting and support, a day from Schindler Elevator, a morning from
Bristol Myers Squib and a day with 75 middle and high school students from
Pingry undertaking community service, who worked incredibly for donuts and
bragging rights as to which group moved the most mulch!!

We will have one final cleanup day on the Sunday after thanksgiving 11/28 9-
1pm and would love your help (and your families help too if you can get them
out of the house!) as we ready the trails for winter. Please register on the
website to attend or let hazel know at hazele@greatswamp.org

Once begun, invasive removal needs to be carried out consistently to maintain
ground against invasive plants, and with two years of little to no invasive work
we risk losing the headway we have previously made on our acreage. With
additional stewardship staff and a more positive outlook for corporate help for
2022 we hope to again regain control! We are continuing to monitor for newly emerging invasives at this and
the Hoag property and are happy to report that the herculean bamboo control carried out at the Hoag property
this summer shows little regrowth. It is easy to spot treat regrowth quickly, but if the bamboo is allowed to
reestablish, removal is a much greater undertaking. The same goes for the many acres of multiflora rose and
wisteria we have cleared around the trail system.




Our staff have now received two full days of chainsaw training to help us with safety
and skills to be able to manage the fallen and small trees that we must take care of
around the property. Although our experienced volunteers carry out much of the
chainsaw work needed around the property, the training also highlighted safety and
maintenance of the equipment we own, allowing us to prolong the life of the
equipment and to ensure others are working safely. We also need to be self-reliant
for removal of fallen trees that close the trail access around the property. However,
we know when dead or difficult trees are above our pay grade, and recently we had a
follow up inspection and assessment with John Rafalowski from Tree-tech to assess
and prioritize our liability trees around the property. We had set aS|de some funds in
our last fiscal year for this task, with the - Sl R
knowledge that work would take place late in the
calendar year. It is essential to remove trees that
pose a risk to our boardwalks, or to hikers who access the trail system. Since
there are several large dead ash trees in the property, and some of these are
both large and surrounded by high value trees, the work may need to be
done in phases. We are waiting for the quote for the scope of work outlines
during the inspection and will proceed from there.

Our new coworker Ginger has been busy updating the CMA map with the
new wetlands and redoing the layout of the map to reflect the additional
boardwalk etc., the new map is installed at the kiosks at the trailhead and
available as a trail map from the dispenser for hikers. We will shortly upload
the new version once we are 100% finished to the website.

Our one-year inspection from our NRCS grant will happen right before thanksgiving, and the final small payment
for installation of vegetation should occur after the biologists and engineers inspect our installation of the
remaining native plant seed and shrub plantings. We will take the opportunity of the inspection to raise our
concerns regarding standing water on the neighboring property and the need for possible ditch plug
remediation since one of the ditch plugs is eroding slightly due to the volume of water flowing over it, and the
need for us to dewater some of the property be cutting into the ditch plug. This was raised at the final as built
meeting and this inspection will show both how well the restoration has been working, how the installed plugs
and vernal pools have held up to the massive rainfall we have had this year and allow us to problem solve for
the few issues we are seeing moving forward.

Fee and Easement Properties.



Our annual inspection process took place earlier this week and the Hoag
property and Wolkowitz and Fairmount easements were inspected. With two
new staff, we made sure that they understood how tot carry out inspections
and write up the reports that are filed as part of our ongoing land management
processes. Since last year the Wolkowitz property has been sold, and it was
heartening to see that the new owner Mr Blanke had removed the bamboo
noted as an issue in the last inspection. Otherwise, the parcels were in good
order. The Fairmount easement, which is the forested and wetter rear % of a
long linear home lot possesses many dead and dying ash. These trees, if they
fall, would not pose a threat to home or structure, however we are checking
that at the rear of the parcel there may be a trail that traverses the rear of the
lot.

GSWA has been contacted by a Chatham resident potentially interested in a donation close to the Rolling knolls
site at the end of Britten Road. Initial visual inspection only has occurred, and the process is in its early stages.




GSWA Water Quality Programs
Board Meeting Report

November 2021

Water Quality Monitoring
Chemistry Monitoring

2021 -

As we approach the end of the year we are finishing up all of our sampling. We are halfway through our
last round of chemistry sampling with the final sample collection scheduled for 11/23. We have
successfully collected all four rounds of sampling at 21 sites this year. This included the additional sites
downstream between Summit and Little Falls as well as three sample sites around our CMA property.
These last were added to collect pre and post water quality data around our amazing EQIP Restoration
Project run by Hazel England.

Visual Monitoring

Our Fall visual assessments are also well underway with a little over half of our monitoring teams having
submitted their data to GSWA. Many of our teams collect their fall assessments as part of their
Thanksgiving holiday tradition.

We held a very successful fall Visual Assessment Training with thirteen people attending and four new
teams signing up to be part of our Stream Team.

If you are interested in learning more about how we assess water quality please visit the GSWA web site

to sign up or reach out to me at sandral@greatswamp.org

Macroinvertebrate sampling —

Macroinvertebrates sampling was conducted in July at 16 sites. The samples will be analyzed at
Normandeau Laboratory for inclusion in our annual report card.

Bacteria sampling —

The 2021 Bacteria sampling was very successful with 10 Stream team volunteers and college interns
collecting samples over a five week period. We had a range of weather conditions over the five weeks,
which is ideal in looking at differences in bacteria levels. Overall the results were as expected with
higher levels of bacteria following rain events.

Education —

We have had a slow but successful fall education programing run. We worked with three schools in the
field for SWaMP programing as well as a number of virtual “field trips” where GSWA staff streamed live
from the stream right into the students classrooms. As the fall season winds down we have two more in
the field SWaMP sessions on the calendar including a new school, Don Bosco Prep in Wayne NJ.



GSWA Associate, Angie Oviedo, has also converted our data sheets to a new digital format which will
allow us to more easily capture and share the SWaMP data that students collect with all of the schools
that participate in the program. They will be able to see where other data was collected, historical data
from the same site and eventually map the locations as well. This new dimension of data availability,
will help teachers to better incorporate the SWaMP trips into their curriculum as extended research
projects.

Passaic River — Clean-up Part 2 - Fairfield

Our first Passaic River — City of Water Day clean-up was a great success and as | mentioned in my last
report we need to keep up the good work. With that in mind, as | was conducting our third quarter
chemistry sampling, shortly after hurricane Ida, | noticed a plethora of trash had collected in the flood
plain just downstream of Great Piece Meadows. Many large items, such as Little Tikes play sets,
propane tanks and coolers had obviously been carried into the area with the flood waters and then
caught up in the trees in the flood plain.

After a meeting with Sydney Abraham, our current AmeriCorps Watershed Ambassador, we decided it
was a great opportunity to team up and clean up. GSWA took the lead in the advertising and ran the
sign up through our web site. Sydney reached out to Essex County and Fairfield Township to arrange for
trash pick up and ask if supplies were available such as trash and gloves. Both the County and the Town
responded with grateful thanks and offers of help.

Essex County DPW provided new trash pickers, wheelbarrows, trash bags and more. GSWA received
three wheelbarrows to use for the day and to keep for future projects. On the day of the clean up, we
had 15 volunteers, including a group of students from a local high school, show up to help as well as
GSWA staff and AmeriCorps partners. For 2 hours we worked and pulled items both large and small
from the flood plain and the river banks. The clean up was a huge success! We pulled 20 tires, 4
garbage cans, a bench swing, two chairs, and a small car (childs toy) from the area. See below for some
great pictures!







